
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
July 21 and August 4, 2016 Planning Commission Minutes

DRAFT July 21, 2016 Planning Commission Minutes 5
DRAFT August 4, 2016 Planning Commission Minutes 64

SUB2016-00021
Brookfield -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2016 21 119

VAC2016-00035
VAC2016 35 -MAPC STAFF RPT 123

VAC2016-00036
VAC2016 36 -MAPC STAFF RPT 126

VAC2016-00037
VAC2016 37 -MAPC STAFF RPT 129

ZON2016-00037 and CUP2016-00028
ZON2016-00037 and CUP2016-00028 Staff Report and
CUP Drawing 132

CUP2016-00024
CUP2016-00024 Staff Report and CUP Drawing 138

CON2016-00042
CON2016-00042 Staff Report and Site Plan 142

CON2016-00043
CON2016-00043 Staff Report and Site Plan 146

DER2016-00002
DER016-00002 Wireless Communication Master Plan
Revisions 150

Amendment to MAPC By-Laws
Bylaws Revisions 179

1



WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Thursday, September 29, 2016 
 
 
The regular meeting of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission will be 
held on Thursday, September 29, 2016, beginning at 1:30 PM in the Planning Department Conference 
Room City Hall - 10th Floor, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas. If you have any questions regarding 
the meeting or items on this agenda, please call the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area 
Planning Department at 316.268.4421. 

1. Approval of the prior MAPC meeting minutes: 
Meeting Date:July 21 and August 4, 2016 Planning Commission Minutes 

 ELECTIONS   Chair and Vice Chair  

2. CONSIDERATION OF SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments. 
SUBDIVISION CASE DETAILS 
2-1. SUB2016-00021: Final Plat – BROOKFIELD ADDITION, located on the southeast 

corner of 37th Street North and Greenwich Road.     

Committee Action: APPROVED 6-0 
Surveyor: Baughman Company, P.A.  
Acreage: 118 
Total Lots: 186  

3. PUBLIC HEARING – VACATION ITEMS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM   
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments.  
Complete legal descriptions are available for public inspection at the Metropolitan Area 
Planning Department – 10th Floor, City Hall, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas 

3-1. VAC2016-00035: City request to vacate a portion of a platted easement on property, 
generally located midway between 31st Street South & I-135, on the northeast corner of 
K-15 and Crystal Street.    

Committee Action: APPROVED 6-0 

3-2. VAC2016-00036: City request to vacate the plattor's text to amend uses allowed in a 
platted reserve, generally located on the northwest side of 24th Street North and Rock 
Road.    

Committee Action: APPROVED 6-0 

3-3. VAC2016-00037: City request to vacate a portion of a platted 30-foot front yard 
building setback on property, generally located northeast of 13th Street North and 
143rd Street East on the southeast corner of Sport of Kings and Sandpiper Streets.    

Committee Action: APPROVED 6-0 

 

 

2



PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM  

4. Case No.: ZON2016-00037 and CUP2016-00028   
Request: City zone change from SF-5 Single-family Residential and GO General 

Office to LC Limited Commercial and amendment to CUP DP-233 
Highland Springs  

General Location: South of W. Central Avenue and west of 135th Street West.  
Presenting Planner: Kathy Morgan 

5. Case No.: CUP2016-00024   
Request: City CUP major amendment to DP-332 to expand the CUP land area and 

amend signage regulations.  
General Location: At the northeast corner of Kellogg and West Street (608 24 S. West St.). 
Presenting Planner: Scott Knebel 

6. Case No.: CON2016-00042   
Request: City Conditional Use to permit Personal Improvement Service (massage 

therapy) on property zoned GO General Office.  
General Location: South of 3rd Street North on the west side of North Hillside Street (353 N. 

Hillside St.) 
Presenting Planner: Kathy Morgan 

7. Case No.: CON2016-00043   
Request: City Conditional Use to permit Personal Improvement Service (massage 

therapy) on property zoned General Office.  
General Location: North of Central and west of Edgemoor Street (603 N. Edgemoor St.) 
Presenting Planner: Kathy Morgan 

8. Case No.: DER2016-00002   
Request: Adoption of the Wireless Communication Master Plan as an element of 

the Community Investments Plan 2015-2035, the Wichita-Sedgwick 
County Comprehensive Plan and Amendments to certain sections of the 
Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code (UZC) pertaining to the 
regulation of wireless communication facilities.  

General Location: City and County wide 
Presenting Planner: Scott Knebel 
 

NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 

9. Case No.: Amendment to MAPC By-Laws   
Presenting Planner: Scott Knebel 
 

3



10. Other Matters/Adjournment  

Dale Miller, Secretary 
Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 
 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-1 
         SEPTEMBER 29, 2016 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2016-00021 – BROOKFIELD ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: 37th and Greenwich, LLC, Attn: Kevin Mullen, 8100 East 22nd 

Street North, Building 1000, Wichita, KS 67226 
 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: Baughman Company, P.A., Attn: Kris Rose, 315 Ellis, Wichita, KS 

67211  
 

LOCATION: Southeast corner of East 37th Street North and North Greenwich 
Road (District II)  

 
SITE SIZE:   118 acres  
 
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  186  
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   186 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 9,450 square feet  
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Rural Residential (RR)  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Single-Family Residential (SF-5) 
 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 

119



SUB2016-00021 – Plat of BROOKFIELD ADDITION 
September 29, 2016 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  This unplatted site is located in the County 322 feet north of Wichita’s boundary.  Upon 
the annexation of the property to the south (also owned by the applicant), this property will be 
eligible for annexation.  The site is currently zoned Rural Residential (RR) and will be converted 
to Single-Family Residential (SF-5) upon annexation.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. Upon the annexation of the property to the south, the applicant for this plat shall apply for 

annexation to Wichita prior to this plat being forwarded to the City Council.  Upon annexation, 
the property will be zoned Single-Family Residential (SF-5) and allow for the lot sizes being 
platted. 

 
B. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department requires a guarantee for the extension 

of water (transmission and distribution) and sewer (mains and laterals) to serve all the lots 
being platted.   

 
C. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

along with the corresponding dollar amounts shall be submitted to the Planning Department 
for recording. 

 
D.  City Stormwater Management advises the drainage plan is approved. 
 
E. County Public Works has approved the access controls.  The plat proposes two street 

openings along 37th Street North and one street opening along Greenwich Road. 

F. Crest/Winston located in the northwestern corner of the plat is a one-block street segment 
with 19 lots on the north and west side of the street.  The Subdivision Regulations indicate 
that no more than 12 lots per side in one block should be served by a 58-foot street segment.  
The Subdivision Committee recommends a modification of the design criteria in Article 7 of 
the Subdivision Regulations as it finds that the strict application of the design criteria will 
create an unwarranted hardship, the proposed modification is in harmony with the intended 
purpose of the Subdivision Regulations and the public safety and welfare will be protected. 

G. Brookview Court located in the southeastern portion of the plat is a one block street segment 
with 25 lots.  The Subdivision Regulations indicate that no more than 24 lots in one block 
should be served by a 58-foot street segment.  The Subdivision Committee recommends a 
modification of the design criteria in Article 7 of the Subdivision Regulations as it finds that 
the strict application of the design criteria will create an unwarranted hardship, the proposed 
modification is in harmony with the intended purpose of the Subdivision Regulations and the 
public safety and welfare will be protected. 

 
H. The applicant shall guarantee the paving of the proposed streets.  The guarantee shall also   

provide for sidewalks on at least one side of all through, non cul-de-sac streets.   
 
I. In accordance with the Kansas Wetland Mapping Conventions under the Memorandum of 

Understanding between the United States Department of Agriculture - Natural Resources 
Conservation Service; United States Environmental Protection Agency; United States Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE); and United States Fish and Wildlife Service, this site has been 
identified as one with potential wetland hydrology.  The USACE should be contacted (316-
322-8247) to have a wetland determination completed. 

 
 

120



SUB2016-00021 – Plat of BROOKFIELD ADDITION 
September 29, 2016 - Page 3 
 
J. The Subdivision Committee recommended language in the restrictive covenant regarding 

City access to all reserves.  Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the 
proposed reserves.  The applicant shall either form a lot owners’ association prior to 
recording the plat or shall submit a restrictive covenant stating when the association will be 
formed, when the reserves will be deeded to the association and who is to own and maintain 
the reserves prior to the association taking over those responsibilities. 

 
K. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 

for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

 
L. City Fire Department has approved the street length of Brookview Ct. (1,330 feet) which has 

been platted with an intermediate turnaround.   
 
M. The applicant shall submit an avigational easement covering all of the subject plat and a 

restrictive covenant assuring that adequate construction methods will be used to minimize 
the effects of noise pollution in the habitable structures constructed on subject property. 

 
N. Approval of this plat will require a waiver of the lot depth-to-width ratio of the Subdivision 

Regulations for various lots at the end of cul-de-sacs.  The Subdivision Regulations state that 
the maximum depth of all residential lots shall not exceed 2.5 times the width. The 
Subdivision Committee recommends a modification of the design criteria in Article 7 of the 
Subdivision Regulations as it finds that the strict application of the design criteria will create 
an unwarranted hardship, the proposed modification is in harmony with the intended purpose 
of the Subdivision Regulations and the public safety and welfare will be protected. 

 
O. GIS requests that Brookview Ct serving lots 52-76, Block F, be revised to Brookview Cir. 
 
P. Reserve "80" needs noted in the plattor's text in two places. 
 
Q. City Environmental Health Division advises that any wells installed on the property for 

irrigation purposes will have to be properly permitted, installed and inspected.  
 

   R. County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to 
tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 

 
   S. The Applicant is reminded that a platting binder is required with the final plat.  Approval of this 

plat will be subject to submittal of this binder and any relevant conditions found by such a 
review. 

 
   T. The plattor’s text shall include language that a drainage plan has been developed for the plat 

and that all drainage easements, rights-of-way, or reserves shall remain at established 
grades or as modified with the approval of the applicable City or County Engineer and 
unobstructed to allow for the conveyance of stormwater.  

 
  U. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 

121



SUB2016-00021 – Plat of BROOKFIELD ADDITION 
September 29, 2016 - Page 4 
 

  V. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 
and any associated documents.  

 
  W. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
  X. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
  Y. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
  Z. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 
AA.  The applicant should check City or County GIS mapping to determine whether the location of 

any taxing district boundaries (e.g. school districts) crosses their property and plan 
accordingly to avoid unnecessary splitting of lots between taxing districts. 

 
BB.  Any removal or relocation of existing equipment of utility companies will be at the applicant’s 

expense.    
  
CC.  A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

 

122



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO.    3-1 
  September 29, 2016 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2016-00035 - Request to vacate a portion of a platted utility easement   
 
APPLICANT/OWNER: Gregory and Judy Gordon (applicant/owner)  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating all of the platted 10-foot wide by 23-foot (west 

side) – 27-foot (east side) long stub easement located on Lot 19, Block 1, Craig’s 
Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas   

 
LOCATION: Generally located midway between 31st Street South & I-135, on the northeast 

corner of K-15 and Crystal Street (3300 East Crystal Street - WCC III) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Build over unused easement 
  
CURRENT ZONING: The site, all abutting and adjacent north, east and south, across Crystal Street, 

properties are zoned SF-5 Single-Family Residential.  Adjacent west properties, 
across K-15, are zoned LI Limited Industrial.  

 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 

 
 
 

123



VAC2016-00035 –Request to vacate a portion of a platted utility easement 
September 29, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
 

The applicants are requesting the vacation of the platted 10-foot wide by 23-foot (west side) – 27-foot (east side) 
long stub easement located on Lot 19, Block 1, Craig’s Addition.  There are no public utilities located within the 
subject easement.  There does not appear to be Westar equipment located in the subject easement.  Comments from 
other franchised utilities have not been received and are needed to determine if they have utilities located within 
the described easement.  The Craig’s Addition was recorded April 8, 1950. 
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations 
based on subsequent comments from City Public Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, franchised 
utility representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not 
limited to) associated with the request to vacate the described portion of the platted utility easement. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of notice 

of this vacation proceeding one time September 8, 2016, which was at least 20 days prior to this public 
hearing. 

 
2.  That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described platted utility easement 

and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 
 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Provide a legal description of the vacated portion of the platted utility easement on a Word document via E-
mail for the Vacation Order.  This must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00035 proceeds to City 
Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the Sedgwick County Register 
of Deeds.        

 
(2) As needed provide easements for public and franchised utilities.  As needed provide letters/conformation 

from franchised utility representatives stating that their utilities are protected by the appropriate easements.  
Easements for public utilities, with original signatures, must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-
00035 proceeds to the City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at 
the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.             

 
(3) As needed provided Public Works-Sewer (and any other utility located within the subject easement) with a 

private project plan for the relocation/abandonment of the sewer line and manholes located within the 
subject easement for review and approval.  Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this 
vacation shall be to City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  
Provide an approved project number to Planning prior to VAC2016-00035 proceeds to the City Council for 
final action.   

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
 

124



VAC2016-00035 –Request to vacate a portion of a platted utility easement 
September 29, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 
 

(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 
MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds. 

. 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

(1) Provide a legal description of the vacated portion of the platted utility easement on a Word document via E-
mail for the Vacation Order.  This must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-00035 proceeds to City 
Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the Sedgwick County Register 
of Deeds.        

 
(2) As needed provide easements for public and franchised utilities.  As needed provide letters/conformation 

from franchised utility representatives stating that their utilities are protected by the appropriate easements.  
Easements for public utilities, with original signatures, must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-
00035 proceeds to the City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at 
the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds.             

 
(3) As needed provided Public Works-Sewer (and any other utility located within the subject easement) with a 

private project plan for the relocation/abandonment of the sewer line and manholes located within the 
subject easement for review and approval.  Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this 
vacation shall be to City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  
Provide an approved project number to Planning prior to VAC2016-00035 proceeds to the City Council for 
final action.   

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds. 

 
 
 
 
 

125



METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM NO.    3-2 
  September 29, 2016 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2016-00036 - Request to vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed 

in a platted reserve 
 
APPLICANT/OWNER: Sycamore Village Home Owners Association (applicant/owner)  
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in the 

platted Reserve B, Sycamore Village 4th Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, 
Kansas   

 
LOCATION: Generally located on the northwest side of 24th Street North and Rock Road (WCC 

II) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Install a sidewalk 
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and all abutting and adjacent properties are zoned SF-5 Single-Family 

Residential. 
 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

126



VAC2016-00036 –Request to vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in a platted reserve 
September 29, 2016 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
The applicant is requested the vacation of the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in the platted Reserve B, 
Sycamore Village 4th Addition.  Reserve B runs parallel with a north portion of 24th Street North and between the 
side yards of the subject plat and the rear yards of three lots located in the west abutting Sycamore Village 3rd 
Addition.   The plattor’s text states that Reserve B is to be used for utilities, drainage, landscaping and open space.  
There is no language in this statement that permits sidewalks.  This is a subdivision and neighborhood without 
sidewalks.  The plattor’s text further states that all reserves in the Sycamore Village 4th Addition are to be owned 
and maintained by the Homeowners Association (HOA).  The HOA is the applicant for the vacation request and is 
aware that the HOA will owned and maintain the sidewalks if the request is approved.  There is a platted 10-foot 
wide utility easement, with sewer line located in it that is located in that portion of Reserve B that is located 
between the already noted lots that will remain in effect.  Comments from franchised utilities have not been 
received and are needed to determine if they have utilities located within the described reserve.  The Sycamore 
Village 4th Addition was recorded May 20, 1985. 
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations 
based on subsequent comments from City Public Works, Water & Sewer, Stormwater, Traffic, Fire, franchised 
utility representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not 
limited to) associated with the request to vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in a platted reserve. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of notice 

of this vacation proceeding one time September 8, 2016, which was at least 20 days prior to this public 
hearing. 

 
2.  That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the plattor’s text to amend the uses 

allowed in a platted reserve and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 
 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1)  Vacate the plattor’s text to allow sidewalks in the platted Reserve B, Sycamore Village 4th Addition, while 
retaining that Reserve B will continue to be used for utilities, drainage, landscaping and open space.   
 

(2) Retain the language in the plattor’s text that states all reserves in the Sycamore Village 4th Addition are to 
be owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association and add that all sidewalks located in all reserves 
in the Sycamore Village 4th Addition shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

 
(3) As needed provide easements for public and franchised utilities.  As needed provide letters/conformation 

from franchised utility representatives stating that their utilities are protected by the appropriate easements.  
Easements for public utilities, with original signatures, must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-
00036 proceeds to the City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at 
the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds. 

 

127



VAC2016-00036 –Request to vacate the plattor’s text to amend the uses allowed in a platted reserve 
September 29, 2016 
Page 3 
 

 
 

(4) As needed provided Public Works, including Stormwater (and any other utility located within the subject 
reserve) with a private project plan for sidewalks located within the subject reserve for review and 
approval.  The sidewalk(s) shall be constructed to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense.  
Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to City Standards and 
shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide an approved project number to 
Planning prior to VAC2016-00036 proceeds to the City Council for final action.   

 
(5) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds. 

 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

(1)  Vacate the plattor’s text to allow sidewalks in the platted Reserve B, Sycamore Village 4th Addition, while 
retaining that Reserve B will continue to be used for utilities, drainage, landscaping and open space.   
 

(2) Retain the language in the plattor’s text that states all reserves in the Sycamore Village 4th Addition are to 
be owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association and add that all sidewalks located in all reserves 
in the Sycamore Village 4th Addition shall be owned and maintained by the Homeowners Association. 

 
(3) As needed provide easements for public and franchised utilities.  As needed provide letters/conformation 

from franchised utility representatives stating that their utilities are protected by the appropriate easements.  
Easements for public utilities, with original signatures, must be provided to Planning prior to VAC2016-
00036 proceeds to the City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at 
the Sedgwick County Register of Deeds. 

 
(4) As needed provided Public Works, including Stormwater (and any other utility located within the subject 

reserve) with a private project plan for sidewalks located within the subject reserve for review and 
approval.  The sidewalk(s) shall be constructed to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense.  
Relocation/reconstruction of all utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be to City Standards and 
shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicants.  Provide an approved project number to 
Planning prior to VAC2016-00036 proceeds to the City Council for final action.   

 
(5) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicants’ expense.   

 
(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds. 

128



   
   AGENDA REPORT NO.    3-5 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION September 29, 2016 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2016-00037 - Request to vacate a portion of platted front yard building setback 
 
APPLICANT/AGENT: Rob and Sankita Richardson (owners/applicants)  Hawthorne Home 

Improvements, c/o Michael Gatschet (agent) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating east 11 feet of the platted 30-foot front yard building 

setback located on and running parallel to the west lot/property line of Lot 4, Block 
5, Savanna at Castle Rock Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas 

 
LOCATION: Generally located northeast of East 13th Street North and North 143rd Street East 

on the southeast corner of Sport of Kings and Sandpiper Streets (WCC #II) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: Build onto garage  
 
CURRENT ZONING: Site and all abutting and adjacent north, east and west properties are zoned SF-5 

Single-Family Residential.  Adjacent south property (across 13th Street North) is 
zoned SF-20 Single-Family Residential.      

 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

129



VAC2016-00037– Request to vacate a portion of a platted front yard building setback 
September 29, 2016  
Page 2 
 
 

 
 

The applicants propose to vacate the east 11 feet of the platted 30-foot front yard building setback located on and 
running parallel to the west lot/property line of the SF-5 Single-Family Residential zoned corner lot, Lot 4, Block 5, 
Savanna at Castle Rock Addition.  Per the Unified Zoning Code’s (UZC) the shorter of the two street frontages of a 
corner lot is the front yard; the west side of the lot that has Sandpiper Street frontage is the front yard.  The UZC 
minimum front yard setback standard for the SF-5 zoning district is 25 feet.  There are no platted easements located 
in the subject front yard building setback.  There are easements or utilities located in the subject front yard building 
setback.  The applicants have provided an e-mail that purports to having approval by the Home Owners Association.  
The Savanna at Castle Rock Addition was recorded with the Register of Deeds January 7, 1994. 
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from Public Works, Storm Water, Water and Sewer, Traffic, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the described portion of platted front yard building setback. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time September 1, 2016, which was at least 20 days prior to 
this public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described portion of the platted 
front yard building setback and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Vacate the east 11feet of the of the platted 30-foot front yard setback located on and running parallel to 
the west lot/property line of the SF-5 Single-Family Residential zoned corner lot, Lot 4, Block 5, Savanna 
at Castle Rock Addition.   Provide Planning Staff with a legal description of the approved vacated portion 
of the setback on a Word document, via e-mail, to be used on the Vacation Order and Vacation Petition.  
This must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to Council for final action.   
 

(2) The applicants must provide a letter from the Home Owners Association, with signatures, that approves 
the proposed garage addition and the design and materials used for the garage addition.  This letter must 
be provided to the Planner prior to VAC2016-00037 going City Council for final action.    

 
(3) Any relocation or reconstruction of utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility 

and at the expense of the applicant.  Provide any needed easements prior to the case going to Council for 
final action. 

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense. 
 

130



VAC2016-00037– Request to vacate a portion of a platted front yard building setback 
September 29, 2016  
Page 3 
 
 

 
 

(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions shall be completed within one year of approval by the 
MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete 
until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final 
action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, 
County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of 
Deeds. 

 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Vacate the east 11feet of the of the platted 30-foot front yard setback located on and running parallel 
to the west lot/property line of the SF-5 Single-Family Residential zoned corner lot, Lot 4, Block 5, 
Savanna at Castle Rock Addition.   Provide Planning Staff with a legal description of the approved 
vacated portion of the setback on a Word document, via e-mail, to be used on the Vacation Order and 
Vacation Petition.  This must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to Council for final 
action.   
 

(2) The applicants must provide a letter from the Home Owners Association, with signatures, that 
approves the proposed garage addition and the design and materials used for the garage addition.  This 
letter must be provided to the Planner prior to VAC2016-00037 going City Council for final action.    

 
(3) Any relocation or reconstruction of utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility 

and at the expense of the applicant.  Provide any needed easements prior to the case going to Council 
for final action. 

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense. 

 
(5) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions shall be completed within one year of approval by the 

MAPC or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not 
complete until the Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners 
have taken final action on the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been 
provided to the City, County and/or franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been 
recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

 

131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



 AGENDA ITEM: 8 

 

WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 

METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

 

DATE:  September 29, 2016 

 

TO:   Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 

 

FROM:  Scott Knebel, AICP, Advanced Plans Division 

 

SUBJECT: DER2016-02:  Wireless Communication Master Plan 

 

Background:  Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2131 was recently passed by the Kansas 

House and Senate.  The bill has numerous State mandates regarding how local units of 

government can regulate wireless communication facilities.  Wichita-Sedgwick County 

regulations of wireless communication facilities are based on the Wireless Communication 

Master Plan. 

 

The following is a high-level summary of the State mandates that will need to be addressed 

through an amendment of the Wireless Communication Master Plan and the Wichita-Sedgwick 

County Unified Zoning Code (UZC).  The bill prohibits the following established practices: 

 

1) Requiring applicants to document that no collocation opportunity is available prior to 

permitting construction of a new wireless communication facility. 

2) Requiring applicants to demonstrate that a wireless communication facility addresses a 

wireless service provider need rather than being constructed as a speculative facility. 

3) Evaluating the merits of an application based on collocation opportunities. 

4) Requiring small cell facilities in lieu of macro facilities in visually/ environmentally sensitive 

locations. 

5) Requiring applicants to agree to permit collocation on their facility by other service providers 

as a condition of approval. 

 

Additionally, the bill deems an application for a wireless communication facility approved if the 

application is not acted upon within 150 days for a new facility or 60-90 days (depending on type) 

for a colocation application.  Finally, the bill requires equal treatment of wireless communication 

facilities with utility installations when applying to locate in right-of-way but establishes a right-

of-way fee cap on local governments that is significantly lower than the fee charged utilities. 

 

Staff in consultation with the Advanced Plans Committee has developed the attached drafts of 

the Wireless Communication Master Plan, September 2016 and the Amendments to the Wichita-

Sedgwick County of the Unified Zoning Code.  Combined, these documents contain the 

amendments to the Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan and Unified Zoning Code 

needed to comply with changes to State law. 

 

150



The Metropolitan Area Planning Commission (MAPC) set a public hearing for August 18, 2016, 

to consider adopting the Wireless Communication Master Plan, September 2016 as an element of 

the Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan and to consider adopting implementing 

amendments of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code (UZC). 

 

At the August 18, 2016, hearing, the MAPC tabled the item until September 29, 2016, to allow 

time for revisions to be prepared to the design guidelines for wireless communication facilities 

located in the right-of-way.  The revisions are contained in the attached Draft Wireless 

Communication Master Plan, September 2016, which was recommended for approval by the 

Advanced Plans Committee at their September 22, 2016, meeting. 

 

Additionally, on September 12, 2016, the Delano Advisory Committee reviewed the provisions 

of the D-O Delano Neighborhood Overlay District and recommended that wireless 

communication facilities be permitted in the D-O District with Conditional Use approval rather 

than prohibited. The recommended changes are contained in the attached Draft Amendments to 

the Wichita-Sedgwick County of the Unified Zoning Code. 

 

Recommended Action:  Approve the resolution adopting attached Draft Wireless 

Communication Master Plan, September 2016 as an element of the Wichita-Sedgwick County 

Comprehensive Plan and recommend that the governing bodies adopt the attached Draft 

Amendments to the Wichita-Sedgwick County of the Unified Zoning Code. 

 

This recommendation is based on the following findings. 

 

1. The extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby 

property:  While the proposed amendments provide regulations and development standards 

that are less restrictive than existing regulations, the proposed amendments comply with state 

law and help mitigate detrimental impacts on nearby properties from the development of 

wireless communication facilities. 

 

2. Relative gain to the public health, safety and welfare as compared to the loss in value or 

the hardship imposed upon property owners:  The proposed amendments will further the 

health, safety, and welfare of the community by providing regulations that increase the 

compatibility of wireless communication facilities with surrounding properties and give those 

property owners more notice of potential facilities than would otherwise be provided under 

the provisions of state law alone.  The proposed amendments comply with state law and 

provide sufficient development opportunities for wireless communication facilities as to not 

create an undue hardship for developers of facilities. 

 

3. Conformance of the requested change to the adopted or recognized Comprehensive 

Plan:  The adopted 2035 Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan, the Community 

Investments Plan, inadvertently does not have an element addressing wireless 

communication plan.  Adopting the Wireless Communication Master Plan, September 2016 

will provide the needed guidance in the Comprehensive Plan regarding wireless 

communication facilities. 

 

151



4. Impact of the Proposed Development on Community Facilities:  The Wireless 

Communication Master Plan, September 2016, provides guidance for wireless 

communication facilities located within the public right-of-way to help mitigate detrimental 

impacts on traffic or pedestrian safety and existing or planned locations of utilities, drainage, 

street lights, sidewalks, driveways, turn lanes, etc. 

 

Attachment: Resolution 

Draft Wireless Communication Master Plan, September 2016 

 Draft Amendments to the Wichita-Sedgwick County of the Unified Zoning Code 

  

152



 

RESOLUTION 

 

WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY METROPOLITAN AREA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority granted by the statutes of the State of Kansas, in K.S.A. 12-747 et seq., 

the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission developed a Comprehensive Plan, 

entitled Community Investments Plan that was adopted by the City of Wichita on December 8, 2015, and 

Sedgwick County on January 20, 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Comprehensive Plan may be amended as needed to ensure it reflects timely and relevant 

information and the needs of the community; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Metropolitan Area Planning Commission did initiate an update of the Wireless Communication 

Master Plan to reflect changes to Kansas State Law enacted by Senate Substitute for House Bill 2131; and 

 

WHEREAS, before the adoption of any Comprehensive Plan or amendment thereto, the Wichita-Sedgwick 

County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission is required by K.S.A. 12-747 et seq. to hold a public hearing; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission did give notice by 

publication in the official City and County newspaper on July 28, 2016, of a public hearing on said Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission, on August 18, 2016, 

tabled the public hearing to September 29, 2016, and on September 29, 2016, did hold a public hearing at which 

a quorum was present, and did hear all comments and testimony relating to said area plan; 

 

NOW, BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED, the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning 

Commission hereby adopts the Wireless Communication Master Plan, September 2016, as an official 

amendment to the Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that notice of this action be transmitted to the City Council of the City of 

Wichita and to the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners for their consideration and adoption. 

 

ADOPTED at Wichita, Kansas, this 29th day of September 2016. 

 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Carol Chapman Neugent, Chair 

Wichita-Sedgwick County  

Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 

 

Attest: Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_______________________________ _________________________________________ 

Dale Miller, Secretary    Jennifer Magana, City Attorney and Director of Law 

Wichita-Sedgwick County  City of Wichita 

Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 

 

153



Draft September 29, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 Wireless Communication Master Plan  

 

 

Prepared by: 

Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Department  

 

 

 

With the assistance of: 

City of Wichita Engineering Division 

Sedgwick County Public Works  
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 2016 

 

                 

154



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 i 

Table of Contents 

I. Background ............................................................................................................. 1 

II. Wireless Communication Deployment ............................................................... 2 

III. Location/Design Guidelines ................................................................................ 5 

A. Location/Height Guidelines ......................................................................... 4 

          B. Design Guidelines ........................................................................................... 8 

C. Right-of-Way .................................................................................................. 10 

D. Submittal Requirements ............................................................................... 11 

Appendix A:  Definitions .............................................................................................. 13 

Appendix B:  Adopting Documents ............................................................................ 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

155



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 1 

I.  Background 

In 1999, the City of Wichita and Sedgwick County determined that they needed a 
clearer framework to review proposals for wireless communication facilities.  An 
extensive planning process was initiated that included outreach to the 
community and wireless communication industry representatives.   Community 
workshops and a wireless industry roundtable were held.  Wireless industry 
representatives were surveyed and meetings were held with individual industry 
representatives.  After a joint workshop with the Wichita City Council, Sedgwick 
County Commission and Metropolitan Area Planning Commission (MAPC) to 
review a draft plan, a city-county staff task force was assigned to meet further 
with the various stakeholders and prepare revisions to the draft plan.  The city-
county task force held numerous meetings with stakeholders from December 
1999 through July 2000.  In July 2000, the MAPC adopted the Wireless 
Communication Master Plan (“the Plan”) as an element of the Wichita-Sedgwick 
County Comprehensive Plan.  The Plan was subsequently approved by the 
Wichita City Council and the Sedgwick County Commission in August 2000. 

Implementing revisions to the Wichita-Sedgwick County Unified Zoning Code 
(UZC) were approved at the same time.  The UZC revisions were based on the 
Plan’s recommendations to limit the overall number of wireless communication 
facilities by promoting collocation of multiple providers’ antennas at a single 
facility.  The UZC revisions also addressed visual obtrusiveness by restricting the 
tallest towers to heavy commercial and industrial areas, requiring setbacks from 
low-density residential areas, and promoting the use of monopole rather than 
lattice-type towers.  Over the next ten years, over 100 new wireless 
communication facilities were built in the community, most of them monopole 
towers located in commercial areas that supported multiple providers’ antennas. 

In March 2011, the Plan was updated to reflect modifications made in 2008 to the 
UZC pertaining to the heights and zoning districts in which Administrative 
Permits could be granted, as well the limitation of Administrative Permits within 
the city limits to certain designated properties.  The March 2011 update also 
included revisions that clarified when it is acceptable to use a lattice-type tower 
and when it is acceptable to use a monopole. 

In 2016, the Kansas Legislature adopted Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 
2131, which declared the regulation of wireless communication facilities to be a 
state-wide interest and directed the approach of cities and counties to regulate 
wireless communication facilities.  The bill prohibits the following established 
practices of the City of Wichita and Sedgwick County: 

156



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 2 

1) Requiring applicants to document that no collocation opportunity is available 
prior to permitting construction of a new wireless communication facility. 

2) Requiring applicants to demonstrate that a wireless communication facility 
addresses a wireless service provider need rather than being constructed as a 
speculative facility. 

3) Evaluating the merits of an application based on collocation opportunities. 

4) Requiring small cell facilities in lieu of macro facilities in visually/ 
environmentally sensitive locations. 

5) Requiring applicants to agree to permit collocation on their facility by other 
service providers as a condition of approval. 

Additionally, the bill deems an application for a wireless communication facility 
approved if the application is not acted upon within 150 days for a new facility 
or 60-90 days (depending on type) for a collocation application.  The bill also 
requires that small cell facilities or distributed antennae systems located in an 
interior structure or upon the site of any campus, stadium, or athletic facility be 
permitted by right.  Finally, the bill requires equal treatment of wireless 
communication facilities with utility installations when applying to locate in 
right-of-way but establishes a right-of-way fee cap on local governments that is 
lower than the fee charged utilities. 

The September 2016 update of the Wireless Communication Master Plan 
addresses the state-mandated approach to reviewing proposals for wireless 
communication facilities.  The updated Plan also has corresponding 
implementing revisions to the UZC. 

157



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 3 

II. Wireless Communication Deployment 

Wireless communication has evolved from a niche business catering to corporate 
executives in the early 1990s to a ubiquitous communication tool used by almost 
everyone less than 25 years later.  As the business has evolved, the number of 
wireless communication facilities in Wichita and Sedgwick County has grown 
from a few dozen in the early 1990s to several hundred today.  By the year 2035, 
there may well be thousands of wireless communication facilities.  They wireless 
communication facilities have deployed in three phases: 

 Coverage.  The initial phase occurred primarily between mid-1990s and mid-
2000s when carriers tried to spread their signal throughout the community in 
an attempt to reach new subscribers.   

 Capacity.  Following the coverage phase, new capacity sites were built 
between the coverage sites to address areas where a high number of users are 
located. 

 Residential.  The current phase of the business plan involves the replacement 
of most wired phones in customers’ homes with wireless devices that are 
used more for text and data than for voice communication. 

The last phase of deployment brings wireless communication facilities into 
residential areas where they are restricted to shorter facilities, as illustrated 
below.   

 

 

158



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 4 

The impact of the phases of wireless communication deployment in Wichita and 
Sedgwick County are: 

 Coverage.  Most areas of Wichita and Sedgwick County presently have 
coverage.  The construction of additional wireless communication facilities to 
provide coverage will be limited in the future and are mostly like to occur in 
rural areas. 

 Capacity.  As areas of the community grow in population, the demand on the 
wireless communication systems will exceed the capacity of the coverage sites 
and providers will need new sites in developing areas to add capacity.  These 
sites mostly can be accommodated in commercial areas and along major 
roadways. 

 Residential.  As the use of wireless devices in homes continues to increase, it 
is likely that there will have to be many more sites for each provider located 
immediately within residential areas.  These mostly likely deployment of 
these sites will be small cell facilities and distributed antenna systems located 
in street right-of-way, as illustrated below. 

 

The challenge of planning for wireless communication facilities is the same as 
that for many other land uses:  balancing marketplace demands with public 
expectations for an orderly and attractive environment.  This Plan anticipates 
and guides future wireless communication deployment with guidelines and 
policies that should be applied in the review of proposed new wireless 
communication facilities. 

159



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 5 

III. Location/Design Guidelines 

This chapter contains guidelines for location, siting and design of new wireless 
communication facilities.  The term “guidelines” is used in recognition that 
deviations from these guidelines can be considered on a case-by-case basis, if 
consistent with the general spirit and intent of this Plan. 

The intent of the Location/Design Guidelines is to balance marketplace demands 
for deployment of wireless communication facilities with the community’s desire 
for an orderly and attractive environment.  In general, tall wireless 
communication facilities should be limited to heavy commercial and industrial 
areas and should decrease in height as the intensity of development decreases, 
with the shortest facilities being located in residential areas.  Additionally, 
facilities should located and designed in a manner that minimizes visual 
obtrusiveness and negative aesthetic impacts on surrounding properties. 

A. Location/Height Guidelines  

1. The following wireless communication facilities should be permitted by right 
in any zoning district, subject to the issuance of a building permit, if they 
conform to the Location/Design Guidelines in this chapter.  Note that right-
of-way is not zoned and has separate permitting requirements described 
below in Section C. 

a. New facilities that are concealed in or mounted on top of or the side of 
existing buildings (excluding single-family and duplex residences) and 
other structures, including collocation and support structures up to 20 
feet above the building or the maximum height permitted by a building 
permit or an Administrative Permit in the underlying zoning district, 
whichever is greater. 

b. Modification and/or replacement of support structures that are not 
significantly more visible or intrusive, including collocation and 
cumulative height extensions of up to 25 percent above the original 
structure height. 

c. Modification and/or replacement of wireless communication facilities, 
including collocation and cumulative height extensions of up to 25 
percent above the original structure height that comply with the 
compatibility height standards of the Unified Zoning Code. 

d. New or modified lattice towers no larger than 18 inches wide on any side 
up to 80 feet in height measured from grade. 

e. Small cell facilities or distributed antennae systems located in an interior 
structure or upon the site of any campus, stadium, or athletic facility. 

160



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 6 

If the Zoning Administrator determines that the wireless communication 
facility does not conform to the Location/Design Guidelines, the building 
permit should be denied.  Denied building permits may be appealed by 
applying for an Administrative Permit or a Conditional Use.  An 
Administrative Permit should be approved subject to conditions that 
maintain conformance with the Location/Design Guidelines.  Wireless 
communication facilities that do not conform to the Location/Design 
Guidelines may be approved for a Conditional Use on a case-by-case basis as 
circumstances warrant. 

2. The following wireless communication facilities should be approved by 
Administrative Permit in any zoning district, with the concurrence of the 
Director of Planning and the Zoning Administrator, if they conform to the 
Location/Design Guidelines in this chapter and, for zoning lots located 
within the City, are designated on the “Properties Eligible for an 
Administrative Permit for a Wireless Communication Facility Map”.   Note 
that right-of-way is not zoned and has separate permitting requirements 
described below in Section C. 

a. New disguised ground-mounted facilities up to 85 feet in height. 

b. New undisguised ground-mounted facilities up to 65 feet in the SF-10, 
SF-5, TF-3, MF-18, MF-29, B,  U, and MH zoning Districts that comply 
with the compatibility height standards of the Unified Zoning Code.  

c. New undisguised ground-mounted facilities up to 85 feet in height in the 
NO, GO, and NR zoning districts that comply with the compatibility 
height standards of the Unified Zoning Code.. 

d. New undisguised ground-mounted facilities up to 120 feet in the RR, SF-
20, LC, OW, and GC zoning Districts that comply with the compatibility 
height standards of the Unified Zoning Code. 

e. New ground-mounted facilities up to 150 feet in height in the IP, CBD, LI, 
GI, and AFB zoning districts that comply with the compatibility height 
standards of the Unified Zoning Code. 

3. Wireless communication facilities that exceed the maximum height for an 
Administrative Permit should be reviewed through the Conditional Use 
process.  Conditional Use approvals typically should be subject to conditions 
that maintain conformance with the Location/Design Guidelines in this 
chapter; however, wireless communication facilities that do not conform to 
the Location/Design Guidelines may be approved for a Conditional Use on 
a case-by-case basis as circumstances warrant.  Note that right-of-way is not 
zoned and has separate permitting requirements described below in Section 
C. 

161



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 7 

4. There should be no nighttime lighting of or on wireless communication 
facilities except for aircraft warning lights or similar emergency warning 
lights required by applicable governmental agencies.  Flashing white 
obstruction lights should not be permitted for nighttime operation.  Lighting 
for security purposes should be permitted at the base of wireless 
communication facilities.  Temporary lighting for nighttime repairs should 
be permitted. 

5. No signs should be allowed on a wireless communication facility other than 
those required by applicable governmental agencies. 

6. The owner should be responsible for the removal of unused facilities, 
including the uppermost 20% of support structures that are unused (except 
where removal of the uppermost 20% would require the removal of a lower 
portion the support structure that is in use, in which case the required 
removal will be raised to the next highest portion of the support structure 
not in use), within 60 days if the wireless communication facility, or portion 
thereof, has been unused for 12 consecutive months.  If such a facility or 
portion of a facility is not removed by the owner, then the City or County 
may employ all legal measures, including, if necessary, obtaining 
authorization from a court of competent jurisdiction, to remove it, and after 
removal may place a lien on the subject property for all direct and indirect 
costs incurred in its dismantling and disposal, including court costs and 
reasonable attorney fees.  Under this paragraph, “owner” includes both the 
owner of the real property and the owner of the wireless communication 
facility, whether such ownership is divided or in the same person. 

7. All wireless communication facilities should comply with all federal, state, 
and local rules and regulations. 

Wireless communication providers are particularly encouraged to seek the 
following new locations for new facilities: 

1. Mounted on top or the side of multistory buildings and other structures, 
appropriately concealed, screened, disguised or camouflaged. 

 2.  On existing utility poles in street right-of-way and on parking lot and 
athletic field/stadium light standards. 

3. On existing support structures, including those constructed for school 
district microwave antennas and private dispatch systems. 

4. In wooded areas. 

162



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 8 

5. At certain City and County-owned properties, where the size and nature of 
the use does not interfere with other functions and allows for compatible 
siting; these may include multistory buildings, water towers, large park 
areas, sewer treatment plant sites, maintenance yards, and public airports. 

6. The City and County should also work with public and private agencies such 
as KDOT, KTA, and Westar, to encourage the use of highway light 
standards, sign structures, and electrical support structures for new wireless 
communication facilities. 

B. Design Guidelines 

As a general rule, the less visible and obtrusive a proposed wireless 
communication facility is, the more acceptable it will be to the community.  The 
visibility of facilities can be minimized by techniques such as concealment, 
disguise, camouflage, and sensitive design and siting.  Specific guidelines 
include: 

 1. Preserving the pre-existing character of the area as much as possible. 

2. Minimizing the height, mass or proportion of the facility to minimize conflict 
with the character of its proposed surroundings.    

3. Minimizing the silhouette presented by new support structures and antenna 
arrays.  Lattice-type support structures are generally appropriate in areas 
outside the “Urban Growth Areas” identified in the Wichita-Sedgwick 
County Comprehensive Plan.  Lattice-type support structures inside the 
Urban Growth Area boundaries generally should be limited to installations 
that have antennas mounted flush to the support structure with cables 
attached to the main support arms rather than the girders.  When an antenna 
array that protrudes from the wireless communication facility is used on a 
support structure inside the Urban Growth Area boundaries, the support 
structure generally should be a monopole.  The figure below illustrates the 
types of support structures that are “encouraged” and “discouraged” by this 
section. 

163



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 9 

 

Encouraged 

             

Discouraged 

 

164



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 10 

4. Using colors, textures and materials that blend in with the existing 
environment and minimize reflection; under some circumstances, surfaces 
should be painted, or otherwise treated, to match or complement existing 
background structures or utility poles, as appropriate. 

5. Concealing facilities within potential space in or on existing structures, or 
disguised to look like another type of facility, like a flagpole, clock tower, or 
church steeple. 

6. Placing facilities in areas where trees and/or buildings obscure some or all 
the facility   from view, and installing new plantings/screening around the 
site where visible from major streets or residential areas. 

7. Placing facilities on existing walls, flush-mounted, or on roofs buildings 
(excluding single-family and duplex) and structures, up to 20 feet above the 
existing structure, as opposed to building new ground-mounted support 
structures.  Facilities on rooftops generally should be set back from roof 
edges or screened from view. 

8. Screening equipment shelters and cabinets through landscaping, walls 
and/or fencing, as appropriate to the surroundings.  In most cases, ground-
level equipment should respect the setbacks for accessory uses in the 
applicable zoning district and be enclosed by 6-8 foot high security fencing, 
of a material compatible with its surroundings.  Equipment should be 
encouraged indoors if space is available nearby.  Burying equipment in an 
underground vault, to keep most of the equipment out of sight, may be 
necessary in right-of-way and in some other visually/environmentally 
sensitive locations, such as tourist attractions, historic landmarks/districts, 
museum district, river corridor, and other locations of civic importance or 
architectural significance.  Ground level shelters/equipment, appropriately 
screened and generally landscaped with trees and/or shrubs, should be 
permitted on lots adjacent to right-of-way, to facilitate the use or 
reconstruction of utility poles in those right-of-way. 

9. Permitting lighting on facilities only if required by federal regulations. 

C. Right-of-Way 

City and County right-of-way is an encouraged location for wireless 
communication facilities, particularly for small cell facilities and distributed 
antenna systems.  Locating wireless communication facilities in the right-of-way 
requires an agreement with the City or County, as applicable.  Such agreements 
should include an ongoing rental fee, as allowed by law, to ensure that private 

165



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 11 

property owners are not at a competitive disadvantage to the public sector in 
regards to renting land for the location of wireless communication facilities.  
However, state law requires that any rental fee for right-of-way must be 
competitively neutral with fees charged to other users of the right-of-way such 
utility companies. 

In addition to the design guidelines described in Section B above, wireless 
communication facilities should also meet the following additional design 
guidelines when located in the right-of-way: 

1. Adjoining Property Owners 

To the extent practical, the design and location should be changed to 
mitigate an adjoining property owner’s concerns and increase consistency 
with the guidelines of this Plan. 

2. Wiring – Underground or Aerially 

Facility wiring should be installed underground and within the support 
structure or within conduit immediately attached to the support structure.  
Facility wiring should not cross over, under, or through private property. 

3. Public Safety 

Place facilities in locations that are outside of the clear zone and do not cause 
a sight obstruction for the traveling public and/or obstruct pedestrian safety. 

4. Right-of-Way/Utility Accommodations 

Place facilities in locations to do not hinder existing or planned uses of the 
right-of-way such as utilities, drainage, street lights, sidewalks, driveways, 
turn lanes, etc. 

5. Facility Height 

The height of facilities should not exceed 40 feet above ground level unless 
authorized by the applicable City of County Engineer, or designee. 

6. Poles 

Replacing or utilizing existing utility poles is encouraged and installing new 
support structures solely for the wireless communication facility is 
discouraged.  The figure below illustrates the types of support structures 
that are “encouraged” and “discouraged” by this guideline. 

166



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 12 

Encouraged Discouraged 

 
Replacement of Existing Light Pole New Pole Installation 

E. Submittal Requirements 

Review of proposals for wireless communication facilities will be greatly aided 
by using a set of standardized submittal requirements.  This Plan suggests the 
following submittal requirements: 

1. A scaled vicinity plan, dimensioned and identifying existing buildings, trees, 
and other features within 200 feet of the wireless communication facility in 
the City of Wichita or within 1,000 feet of the wireless communication 
facility in the unincorporated area of Sedgwick County. 

2. A one-inch-equals-20 feet site plan, dimensioned, identifying the location of 
all facility elements. 

3. Typical elevations of all facility elements, dimensioned. 

4. Specification of exterior materials and colors of all facility elements. 

5. Landscape/screening plan, with all materials and sizes specified. 

6. Appearance of proposed facility shown in site context by photo-simulation. 

167



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 13 

Appendix A:  Definitions 

Applicant.  Any person or entity that is engaged in the business of providing 
wireless services or the wireless infrastructure required for wireless services and 
that submits an application. 

Application.  A request submitted by an applicant for: (A) the construction of a 
new wireless support structure or new wireless facility; (B) the substantial 
modification of a wireless support structure or wireless facility; or (C) collocation 
of a wireless facility or replacement of a wireless facility. 

Collocation.  Mounting or installation of wireless facilities on a building, 
structure, wireless support structure, tower, utility pole, base station or existing 
structure for the purposes of transmitting or receiving radio frequency signals for 
communication purposes. 

Distributed Antenna System.  A network that distributes radio frequency 
signals and consisting of: (A) Remote communications or antenna nodes 
deployed throughout a desired coverage area, each including at least one 
antenna for transmission and reception; (B) a high capacity signal transport 
medium that is connected to a central communications hub site; and (C) radio 
transceivers located at the hub’s site to process or control the communications 
signals transmitted and received through the antennas to provide wireless or 
mobile service within a geographic area or structure. 

Lattice Tower.  A type of support structure that consists of an open network of 
braces forming a tower that is usually triangular or square in cross section. 

Modification and/or Replacement.  Modification of a  support structure or 
wireless communication facility of comparable proportions and of comparable 
height or such other height that would not constitute a substantial modification 
in order to support wireless facilities or to accommodate collocation and includes 
replacement of any pre-existing wireless communication facility or support 
structure. 

Monopole.  A type of support structure that consists of a vertical pole fixed into 
the ground and/or attached to a foundation. 

Right-of-Way.  The area of real property in which the City or County has a 
dedicated or acquired right-of-way interest in the real property. It shall include 
the area on, below or above the present and future streets, alleys, avenues, roads, 
highways, parkways or boulevards dedicated or acquired as right-of-way. 
‘‘Right-of-way” does not include any state, federal or interstate highway right-of-
way, which generally includes the area that runs contiguous to, parallel with, 

168



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 14 

and is generally equidistant from the center of that portion of the highway 
improved, designed or ordinarily used for public travel. 

Small Cell Facility.  A wireless communication facility that meets both of the 
following qualifications: (A) Each antenna is located inside an enclosure of no 
more than six cubic feet in volume, or in the case of an antenna that has exposed 
elements, the antenna and all of the antenna’s exposed elements could fit within 
an imaginary enclosure of no more than six cubic feet; and (B) primary 
equipment enclosures that are no larger than 17 cubic feet in volume, or facilities 
comprised of such higher limits as the federal communications commission has 
excluded from review pursuant to 54 U.S.C. § 306108. Associated equipment may 
be located outside the primary equipment, and if so located, is not to be included 
in the calculation of equipment volume. Associated equipment includes, but is 
not limited to, any electric meter, concealment, telecommunications demarcation 
box, ground-based enclosures, back-up power systems, grounding equipment, 
power transfer switch, cut-off switch and vertical cable runs for the connection of 
power and other services. 

Substantial Modification.  Modification of a wireless communication facility or 
support structure that will substantially change the physical dimensions under 
the objective standard for substantial change, established by the federal 
communications commission pursuant to 47 C.F.R. 1.40001. 

Support Structure.  A freestanding structure, such as a monopole, guyed or self-
supporting tower or other suitable existing or alternative structure designed to 
support or capable of supporting wireless facilities, and any structure that is 
currently supporting or designed to support the attachment of wireless facilities, 
including, but not limited to, towers, buildings and water towers. 

Utility Pole.  A structure owned or operated by a public utility as defined in 
K.S.A. 66-104, and amendments thereto, a municipality as defined in K.S.A. 75-
6102, and amendments thereto, or an electric cooperative as defined in K.S.A. 
2015 Supp. 17-4652, and amendments thereto, that is designed specifically for 
and used to carry lines, cables or wires for telecommunications, cable, electricity 
or to provide lighting. 

Wireless Communication.  Personal wireless services and personal wireless 
service facilities as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 332(c)(7)(C), including commercial 
mobile services as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 332(d), provided to personal mobile 
communication devices through a wireless communication facility or any fixed 
or mobile wireless services provided using a wireless communication facility. 

169



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 15 

Wireless Communication Facility.  Equipment at a fixed location that enables 
wireless communications between user equipment and a communications 
network, including, but not limited to: (A) a support structure consisting of a 
freestanding support structure, such as a monopole, guyed, or self-supporting 
tower or other suitable existing or alternative structure designed to support or 
capable of supporting wireless facilities; (B) a base station that supports or 
houses an antenna, transceiver, coaxial cables, power cables or other associated 
equipment at a specific site that is authorized to communicate with mobile 
stations, generally consisting of radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial cables, 
power supplies and other associated electronics; (C) equipment associated with 
wireless services such as private, broadcast and public safety services, as well as 
unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services such as microwave 
backhaul; and/or (D) radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cable, 
regular and backup power supplies and comparable equipment, regardless of 
technological configuration. 

170



Wireless Communication Master Plan – September 2016 

 

Draft September 29, 2016 16 

Appendix B:  Adopting Documents 

 

[insert documents] 

171



Draft 9-29-16  Page 1 
 

Amendments to the Wichita-Sedgwick County of the Unified Zoning Code 

Required by Senate Substitute for House Bill No. 2131 

and Including Recommended Delano Overlay Amendments 

 

Section II-B.14.p. and Section II-B.14.q. 

 
p. Wireless Communication means wireless services covered by the 

Location/Design Guidelines of the Wireless Communication Master Plan. It 
includes the following terms as defined in the Wireless Communication Master 
Plan as adopted by the Governing Bodies: broadcast systems, cellular, 
commercial mobile radio services, common carrier wireless access exchange 
services, enhanced specialized mobile radio, functionally equivalent services, 
personal communication services, paging, personal wireless services, public 
service and emergency systems, specialized mobile radio, tower builder, 
unlicensed wireless services and wireless cable system. It does not include 
amateur radio or private dispatch system as defined in the Wireless 
Communication Master Plan as adopted by the Governing Bodies personal 
wireless services and personal wireless service facilities as defined in 47 U.S.C. 
§ 332(c)(7)(C), including commercial mobile services as defined in 47 U.S.C. § 
332(d), provided to personal mobile communication devices through a Wireless 
Communication Facility or any fixed or mobile wireless services provided using 
a Wireless Communication Facility. 

 

q. Wireless Communication Facility means facilities covered by the 

Location/Design Guidelines of the Wireless Communication Master Plan. It 
includes the following terms as defined in the Wireless Communication Master 
Plan as adopted by the Governing Bodies: antenna, antenna array, equipment 
shelter, guyed tower, lattice tower, location, monopole, site, support Structure 
and tower. a Lot containing equipment at a fixed location that enables wireless 
communications between user equipment and a communications network, 
including, but not limited to: (A) a wireless support structure consisting of a 
freestanding support structure, such as a monopole, guyed, or self-supporting 
tower or other suitable existing or alternative structure designed to support or 
capable of supporting wireless facilities; (B) a base station that supports or 
houses an antenna, transceiver, coaxial cables, power cables or other associated 
equipment at a specific site that is authorized to communicate with mobile 
stations, generally consisting of radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial cables, 
power supplies and other associated electronics; (C) equipment associated with 
wireless services such as private, broadcast and public safety services, as well 
as unlicensed wireless services and fixed wireless services such as microwave 
backhaul; and/or (D) radio transceivers, antennas, coaxial or fiber-optic cable, 
regular and backup power supplies and comparable equipment, regardless of 
technological configuration. 

 

Section III-C.8.b. 

 

b. Use Regulations. The Use regulations of this Overlay District shall control 

over the Underlying zoning District. 

 

172



Draft 9-29-16  Page 2 
 

(1) Prohibited Uses. Subject to Section III-C.8.c(1)(b), the following Uses 

are explicitly prohibited in the D-O District, regardless if said Uses are 
stated as permitted or Conditional Uses in the Underlying Districts: 

 

Asphalt or Concrete Plant, Limited and General 
Businesses of an adult entertainment nature requiring a license under 
the Code of the City of Wichita, Chapters 3.05, 3.07, 3.56 and 3.74 
Correctional Facility 
Correctional Placement Residence, Limited and General 
Gas and Fuel, Storage and Sales 
Manufactured Home Subdivision 
Manufactured Home Park 
Mining or Quarrying 
Oil and Gas Drilling 
Rock Crushing 
Sign (off-site) 
Solid Waste Incinerator Vehicle 
Storage Yard 
Wireless Communication Facility 
Wrecking/Salvage Yard 

 

(2) Conditional Uses. Subject to Section III-C.8.c(1)(b), the following Uses 

shall be allowed only as a Conditional Use in the D-O District, regardless 
if said Uses are stated as permitted Uses in the Underlying Districts: 

 

Car Wash 
Convenience Store 
Freight Terminal 
Manufacturing, General and Limited 
Parking Area, Commercial 
Restaurant (drive-in/drive-through) 
Service Station 
Storage, Outdoor 
Utility, Major 
Vehicle and Equipment Sales (indoor) 
Vehicle and Equipment Sales, Outdoor 
Vehicle Repair, General 
Vehicle Repair, Limited 
Warehouse, Self-service Storage 
Warehousing 
Wholesale or Business Services 
Wireless Communication Facility, subject to Sec. III-D.6.g 

 

Section III-D.6. 

 
6.  Supplementary Use Regulations. No permit shall be issued for any Development 

or Use of land unless the activity is in compliance with all applicable supplementary 
use regulations specified in this section, or unless the supplementary use 
regulations have been modified or waived by the Governing Body pursuant to the 
Development Review Procedures contained in Article V. The supplementary use 
regulations of this section are not applicable to Lots in the AFB Air Force Base 

173



Draft 9-29-16  Page 3 
 

District. In the case of conflict with zoning District property Development standards 
or other regulations of this Code, the more restrictive requirement shall apply, 
unless otherwise specifically provided. 

 

Section III-D.6.g. 

 

g. Wireless Communication FacilitiesFacility. Whether allowed by right, 

subject to a Building Permit, by Administrative Permit, by CUP 
adjustment/amendment, by P-O adjustment/amendment or by Conditional 
Use approval, a  Wireless Communication Facilities Facility shall be subject to 
the following provisions. 

 
(1) All A Wireless Communication Facilities Facility shall be evaluated in 

terms of their conformance to the  guidelines  in  the  "Wireless  
Communication  Master Plan" as adopted by the Governing Body, and 
applications for such facilities shall include information for review as 
required in that Plan. 

 
(2) The A following Wireless Communication Facilities areFacility is permitted 

by right in any zoning District, subject to the issuance of a Building 
Permit, if they conformit conforms to the Location/Design Guidelines in 
this chapterthat Plan: 

 
(a) new facilities facility that are is concealed in or mounted on top of or 

the side of existing buildings (excluding single-family and  duplex  
residences) and other Structures, including support structures up 
to 20 feet above the Building or the maximum height permitted 
by a Building Permit or an Administrative Permit in the underlying 
zoning District, whichever is greater; 

 
(b) modification and/or replacement of support structures (light poles, 

flag poles, electrical poles, private dispatch towers, etc.) that are not 
significantly more visible or intrusive, including cumulative height 
extensions of up to 25 percent above the original Structure height; 

 
(c) modification and/or replacement of a  Wireless Communication 

FacilitiesFacility, including cumulative height extensions of up to 25 
percent above the original structure height that comply with the 
compatibility height standards as outlined in Sec. IV-C.5;  

(d) new or modified lattice towers no larger than 18 inches wide on 
any side up to 80 feet in height measured from grade. 

(d)(e) small cell facility or distributed antennae system located in an 

interior Structure or upon the site of any campus, stadium, or 
athletic facility. 

 
If the Zoning Administrator determines that the Wireless Communication 
Facility does not conform to the Location/Design Guidelines, the Building 
pPermit shall be denied. Denied Building Permits may be appealed by 
applying for an Administrative Permit or a Conditional Use. An 
Administrative Permit shall be approved subject to conditions that 

174



Draft 9-29-16  Page 4 
 

maintain conformance with the Location/Design Guidelines. A Wireless 
Communication Facilities Facility that does not conform to the 
Location/Design Guidelines may be approved for a Conditional Use on a 
case-by-case basis as circumstances warrant. 

 
(3) The followingA Wireless Communication Facilities Facility shall be 

approved by Administrative Permit in any zoning District, under the 
procedures in Sec. VI-G.9 and Sec. VI-H.5, if they conformit conforms to 
the Location/Design Guidelines in the "Wireless Communication Master 
Plan" and, for zoning Lots located within the City, are is designated on 
the “Properties Eligible for an Administrative Permit for a Wireless 
Communication Facility Map” of Sec. I- L.: 

 
(a) new disguised ground-mounted facilities up to 85 feet in height; 

 
(b) new undisguised ground-mounted facilities up to 65 feet in the 

SF- 10, SF-5, TF-3, MF-18, MF-29, B and MH zoning Districts  that 
comply with the compatibility height standards as outlined in Sec. 
IV-C.5, which shall not be reduced or waived through the provisions 
of Sec. V-I.2.d; 

 
(c) new undisguised ground-mounted facilities up to 85 feet in the 

NO, GO and NR zoning Districts that comply with the compatibility 
height standards as outlined in Sec. IV-C.5, which shall not be 
reduced or waived through the provisions of Sec. V-I.2.d; 

 
(d) new ground-mounted facilities up to 120 feet in height in the RR, 

SF- 20, U ,  LC, OW, and GC zoning Districts that comply with 
the compatibility height standards as outlined in Sec. IV-C.5, which 
shall not be reduced or waived through the provisions of Sec. V-I.2.d; 
or 

 
(e) New ground-mounted facilities up to 150 feet in height in the 

IP, CBD, LI and GI zoning Districts that comply with the 
compatibility height standards as outlined in Sec. IV-C.5, which 
shall not be reduced or waived through the provisions of Sec. V-I.2.d. 

 
If the property on which the facility is located is within a CUP or P-O, the 
Administrative Permit shall also be considered as an application for an 
adjustment of the CUP or P-O as outlined in Sec. V-E.14, excluding 
the requirement of V-E.14.a, or Sec. V-C.14, excluding the requirement of 
V-C.14.a., as applicable. 

 
(4) All A Wireless Communication Facilities Facility that does not meet the 

requirements of Sec.  III-D.6.g(2)  or  Sec.  III-D.6.g(3)  shall  be  reviewed  
through  the Conditional Use process as outlined in Sec. V-D or, if the 
property on which the facility is located is within a CUP or P-O, as an 

amendment to the CUP or P-O as outlined in Sec. V-E.13. or Sec. V-C.13, 
as applicable. 

 
(5) There shall be no nighttime lighting of or on a  Wireless Communication 

Facilities Facility except for aircraft warning lights or similar emergency 

175



Draft 9-29-16  Page 5 
 

warning lights required by applicable governmental agencies. Flashing 
white obstruction lights shall not be permitted for nighttime operation. 
Lighting for security purposes shall be permitted at the base of wireless 
communication facilities. Temporary lighting for nighttime repairs shall be 
permitted. 

 
(6) No signs shall be allowed on an antenna support structure a Wireless 

Communication Facility other than those required by applicable 

governmental agencies. 
 

(7) At the time of requesting a Conditional Use, a CUP amendment, a P-
O amendment, an Administrative Permit, or a Building Permit for a 
new ground-mounted Wireless Communication Facility, as applicable, 
the applicant shall demonstrate to the satisfaction of the approving 
authority that: (a) there is no available space on existing or approved 
wireless communication facilities or other structures that can be utilized to 
meet the communication needs (an existing site will be considered 
"available space" only if the site is technically feasible with a ready, willing, 
and able landlord); and (b) there is no other economically and technically 
feasible opportunity to modify or rebuild an existing structure on which 
the communication equipment may be located. The technical feasibility 
of existing, modified or rebuilt structures may be reviewed by consultants 
to the Planning Department. 

 
(8) At the time of requesting a Conditional Use, a CUP amendment, a P-

O amendment, an Administrative Permit, or a Building Permit for a 
Wireless Communication Facility, as applicable, the owner of a proposed 
new undisguised ground-mounted Wireless Communication Facility, and 
the Owner of the land, if not the same, shall agree in writing that (a) 
the support structure is designed, and the ground area is adequate or 
will be made adequate, to accommodate at least one other carrier, if more 
than 80 feet in height, and at least two other carriers, if more than 
100 feet in height; (b) reasonable accommodations will be made to lease 
space on the facility to other carriers so as to avoid having a proliferation 
of support structures that are not fully utilized; and (c) the owner(s) shall 
make available in the future the opportunity for another party to pay the 
cost to modify or rebuild the Structure to support additional 
communication equipment where economically and technically feasible. 
Lattice towers no larger than 18 inches on any side shall be excluded 
from the co-location requirements of subsection (a) of this paragraph. 

 
(9)(7) Unused facilities, including the uppermost 20 percent of support 

structures that are unused (except where removal of the uppermost 20 
percent would require the removal of a lower portion the support structure 
that is in use, in which case the  required removal will be raised to 
the next highest portion of the support structure not in use), shall be 
removed by the owner within 60 days if the Wireless Communication 
Facility, or portion thereof, has been unused for 12 consecutive months.  
If such a facility or portion of a facility is not removed by the owner, then 
the City or County may employ all legal measures, including, if necessary, 
obtaining authorization from a court of competent jurisdiction, to remove 
it, and after removal may place a lien on the subject property for all direct 

176



Draft 9-29-16  Page 6 
 

and indirect costs incurred in its dismantling and disposal, including 
court costs and reasonable attorney fees. Under this paragraph, "owner" 
shall include both the Owner of the real property and the owner of the 
Wireless Communication Facility, whether such ownership is divided or in 
the same person. 

 
(10)(8) All Wireless Communication Facilities shall comply with all federal, 

state, and local rules and regulations. 
 
Section IV-C.5. 

 
5. Compatibility Height standards. The following Height standards shall apply 

to Development that is subject to compatibility standards, unless reduced or 
waived through the provisions of Sec. V-I.2. 

 
a. No Structure (except for wireless communication facilities) shall exceed 

35 feet in height within 50 feet of the lot line of property zoned TF-3 or 
more restrictive. Structures located more than 50 feet from the Lot  Line  of 
property zoned TF-3 or more restrictive may increase Height (if permitted 
by the base District regulations) at a ratio of one foot in Height for each 
three feet of Setback beyond 50 feet. For example, a Building Structure 
limited to 35 feet in Height at 50 feet from the Lot Line of property zoned 
TF-3 or more restrictive could be increased to a Height of 85 feet at a distance 
of 200 feet from the Lot Line of property zoned TF-3 or more restrictive. 

 
b. Wireless Communication Facilities shall not exceed a Height equal to 

the distance to the Lot Line of property zoned TF-3 or more restrictive. 
For example, a Wireless Communication Facility located 100 feet from the 
Lot Line of property zoned TF-3 or more restrictive cannot exceed a Height 
of 100 feet. 

 
Section VI-B.7. (new) 
 

7. Zoning Adjustments. The Governing Body shall have the authority to approve, 

approve with conditions or modifications, or deny zoning adjustments when 
requested in association with an application to amend the Official Zoning Map, an 
application for Community Unit Plan approval, or an application for Conditional 
Use approval. 

 
Section VI-C.7. (new) 

 
7. Zoning Adjustments. The Planning Commission shall have the authority to 

approve, approve with conditions or modifications, or deny zoning adjustments 
when requested in association an application for Conditional Use approval or for 
amendment to a Community Unit Plan and shall have the authority to recommend 
to the Governing Body approval, approval with conditions, or denial of a zoning 
adjustment when requested in association with an application to amend the Official 
Zoning Map or amend a Planned Unit Development or Protective Overlay. 

 
 

 

177



Draft 9-29-16  Page 7 
 

Section VI-G.9. 

 
9. Administrative Permits. The Planning Director, with the concurrence of the 

Zoning Administrator, shall have the authority to approve, approve with 
conditions or modifications, or deny applications for a  Wireless Communication 
Facilities Facility pursuant to Sec. III-D.6.g. The Planning Director's decision on 
such an application may be appealed by filing an application for a Conditional Use. 

 
Section VI-H.5. 

 
5. Administrative Permits. The Zoning Administrator shall have the authority to 

review and recommend to the Planning Director approval, approval with 
conditions or modifications, or denial of applications for wireless communication 
facilitiesa Wireless Communication Facility pursuant to Sec. III-D.6.g. An 
Administrative permits Permit for a  Wireless Communication Facilities Facility 
may be granted by the Planning Director only with the concurrence of the Zoning 
Administrator. 

178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186


	Agenda
	July 21 and August 4, 2016 Planning Commission Minutes

ELECTIONS
     Chair
      Vice Chair
	DRAFT July 21, 2016 Planning Commission Minutes
	DRAFT August 4, 2016 Planning Commission Minutes

	SUB2016-00021
	Brookfield -MAPC STAFF RPT -SUB2016 21

	VAC2016-00035
	VAC2016 35 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2016-00036
	VAC2016 36 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	VAC2016-00037
	VAC2016 37 -MAPC STAFF RPT

	ZON2016-00037 and CUP2016-00028
	ZON2016-00037 and CUP2016-00028 Staff Report and CUP Drawing

	CUP2016-00024
	CUP2016-00024 Staff Report and CUP Drawing

	CON2016-00042
	CON2016-00042 Staff Report and Site Plan

	CON2016-00043
	CON2016-00043 Staff Report and Site Plan

	DER2016-00002
	DER016-00002 Wireless Communication Master Plan Revisions

	Amendment to MAPC By-Laws
	Bylaws Revisions


